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This information memorandum is prepared by Kaiyuan Travel Group China
Holding Co., Ltd. (Cayman Company Number: SI-337286, the “Company”) in
connection with its application for a tradable listing on the Dutch Caribbean
Securities Exchange N.V. (DCSX). No offer of securities is being made under
this information memorandum.

Before deciding to invest in the Company’s securities following its listing on
DCSX, prospective investors should read entirely this information
memorandum. Prospective investors should carefully consider these factors in
light of their personal circumstances (including financial and taxation issues)
and consider seeking professional advice from their accountant, bank manager,
stockbroker, lawyer or other professional adviser before deciding to invest.
Prospective investors should also pay attention to the section “Risk Factors
and Litigation” of this Information Memorandum.

This Information Memorandum does not constitute or form any offer or
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invitation to sell or issue, or any solicitation of any offer to purchase or
subscribe to any securities. Neither this Information Memorandum nor the
publication of the information contained herein is intended to be any
inducement to sign any contract, and in no event shall it be construed so in
any jurisdiction. This Information Memorandum may be withdrawn at any time
before the proposed listing. This Information Memorandum is intended to
provide information to prospective investors in their evaluation of the
investment and should only be used for this purpose.

This information memorandum includes, or may include, forward-looking
statements including, without limitation, forward-looking statements regarding
the Company's financial position, business strategies, and plans and
objectives for its business and future operations (including development plans
and objectives), which have been based on the Company‘'s current
expectations. These forward-looking statements are, however, subject to
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could cause
actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from future
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-
looking statements. These forward looking statements are based on numerous
assumptions regarding the Company's present and future business strategies
and environment in which the Company will operate in the future. Matters not
yet known to the Company or not currently considered material to the
Company may impact on these forward looking statements. These statements
reflect views held only as at the date of this information memorandum. In light
of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking statements
in this information memorandum might not occur. Investors are therefore
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these statements. The Information
Memorandum contains statements, estimates and financial projections that
are based on a variety of assumptions which may or may not prove to be
accurate or may be subject to disputes. Each prospective investor should
consider seeking professional advice from their accountant, bank manager,
stockbroker, lawyer or other professional adviser. The Company does not have
any obligation to provide any other information other than this Information
Memorandum that does not constitute a recommendation, endorsement or
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confirmation of the value of the securities being offered.

Application has been made for the listing of the Company’s securities
described in this information memorandum to DCSX. The fact that DCSX may
list the securities of the Company is not to be taken in any way as an indication
of the merits of the Company or its listed securities. DCSX takes no
responsibility for the contents of this document, makes no representations as
to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon any part
of the contents of this document.

The Listing Advisor (LAD), Nanjing LCL Consulting Co., Ltd., mentioned in this
Information Memorandum shall not take any responsibility for the authenticity,
accuracy or completeness of any information (finance, law or other) contained
in this Information Memorandum, and does not make any representation or
provide any approval, commitment, statement, certification or guarantee with
respect to any information in this Information Memorandum. The Company and
its Directors and Senior Management are responsible for the authenticity,
accuracy, and completeness of the content of this Information Memorandum.

These listing rules may be amended or added to by the Exchange from time
to time. In addition, the Exchange may, where necessary, impose additional
requirements or male listing subject to special conditions, or modify the
application of the listing rules, whenever it is considered appropriate. Issuers
must satisfy any additional requirements and supply any further documents
and information that the Exchange may require in any particular case.

After listing, investors and the public are kept informed by the issuer, including
timely disclosure of information which might reasonably be expected to have
a material effect on market activity in, and the prices of, the investment
company's securities; details regarding filings with any other stock exchange
on which any part of the equity or debt securities of the issuer are listed or
dealt in or on which listing or permission to deal is being or is proposed to be
sought, the name of the stock exchange on which the issuer's primary listing
is or is to be and particulars of the dealing and settlement arrangements on
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each such exchange and between such exchanges, or an appropriate
negative statement.

These listing rules reflect currently accepted international standards and seek
to achieve a sound balance between providing appropriate issuers with access
to the Exchange market while providing investors with certain safeguards and
with sufficient and timely information to enable them to make informed
decisions as to the value and merits of the issuer's securities. In particular,
these listing rules are intended to offer assurance that investors have and can
maintain confidence in the Exchange market.

If you need any further information, please consult with your stock brokers and
other professional advisors.

The date of this Information Memorandum is on April 26th, 2019.
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1.Definitions

1.Definitions

“The Company / Kaiyuan” (Cayman Company Number: SI-337286), a
company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands and having its registered
address at the offices of Sertus Chambers,
Governors Square, Suite#5-204, 23 Lime
Tree Bay Avenue, P.O.Box 2547,Grand
Cayman,KY1-1104, Cayman Islands, the
holding company that indirectly owns 100%
of the outstanding shares of Jiangxi Kaiyuan
International Traveling Agency Group Ltd.

“IKIT” a company incorporated under the laws of
People’s Republic of China and having its
registered address at Third & Forth & Fifth
Floor, Block 3, No. 555, Gaoxin Avenue,
Nanchang National High-Tech Industrial
Development, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, China, and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

“DCSX” The Dutch Caribbean Securities Exchange

“ACT” The Cayman Business Companies Law
CAP.22, including any modification,
extension, re-enactment or renewal thereof
and any regulations made thereunder

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards,
the set of international accounting standards
stating how particular types of transactions
and other events should be reported in
financial statements



1.Definitions

“LAD” Listing Advisor
“Li Chen Long Nanjing LCL Consulting Co., Ltd.
Consulting”

“Listing Rules” The Listing Rules of the DCSX



2.Corporation Directory

2.Corporation Directory

Issuer

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Address: Sertus Chambers, Governors Square, Suite#5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay
Avenue, P.O.Box 2547, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands

Contact Person: Xia Liu

Tel: +86-0791-87879492

e-mail: 2963594566@qg.com

Auditor

Xingyuan United Certified Public Accountants

Room 1220, No.28, Yuanwen RoadRoad, Shanghai, China
Contact Person: Youhui Song

Tel: +86-18761910175

E-mail: 909345224@qq.com

Principal Banker

Hua Xia Bank Co., Ltd.

World Trade Center branch, Honggutan New Area, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, China

Contact Person: Mei Wu

Tel: +86- 15079055740

Lawyer

Jiangxi Yuzhang Law Firm

Floor 7&11, Pufa Masion, No. 1402, Middle Honggu Avenue, Honggutan New
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province, China

website: www.jxyuzhang.com

Tel: +86-0791-8662311

Listing Advisor

Nanjing LCL Consulting Co., Ltd.

Floor 31, Building A, Jinshan Mansion, No. 8, Shanxi Road, Nanjing City, China
Contact Person: Hao Chen Tel: +86-025-52367303

E-mail: chenhao@lIclzx.com




3.Company Overview

3.Company Overview

3.1.Business Structure

“Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.”, a company incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands, is the company seeking to be listed on DCSX.
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd. is the owner of 100% of the
outstanding shares of Hong Kong Kaiyuan Travel Group Holding Co., Ltd., a
company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong, which in turn is the owner
of 100% of the outstanding shares of Nanchang Xiangyou International
Traveling Agency Co., Ltd., a company incorporated and organized under the
laws of China as a Wholly Owned Foreign Entity (“WOFE”). Nanchang
Xiangyou International Traveling Agency Co., Ltd. owns 100% of the
outstanding shares of Jiangxi Kaiyuan International Traveling Agency Group
Ltd. (“JKIT"), which is the operating company in China with assets and business
operations.

Business structure is as follow:
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

100%

HK Kaiyuan Travel Group Co., Limited

100%

Y
—

Nanchang Xiangyou International

100%

Jiangxi Kaiyuan International Traveling
Agency Group Ltd. (Incorporated in

N 51% | 99% ( N
Ganzhou Letian International L Jiangxi Green Soft Technology Co.,
Travel Agency Co., Ltd. Ltd.
gency J y,
s 70% [ A
Hannan Xiangyou International Jiangxi Kaiyuan Wenlv Hotel
Traveling Agency Co., Ltd. b Management Co., Ltd. )
) 51%| 51% R
Ganzhou Letian International ) > Jiangxi Kaiyuan Automobile Service
Travel Agency Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.

J
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Company Name

Uniform Social Credit Code

Type of Company

Address

Legal Representative
Registered Capital
Date of Establishment
Operating Period

Business Scope

Nanchang Xiangyou International
Traveling Agency Co., Ltd.

91360121MA386XEQ42

Limited Liability Company (Wholly
owned by Taiwan, Hong Kong and
Macao legal persons)

Xiaolan Business Incubation Centres,
Xiaolan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Nanchang
County, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province

Lin Shi

RMB 2 Million

October 24th, 2018

October 24th, 2018 to non-limited date

Travel agencies and related services;
Ticketing agent; Conference and
exhibition service; Arts and crafts
wholesale; Online trading agent;
Tourist attraction development
(Projects that are needed to be
approved under the laws can only be
operated after being approved by
relevant governmental authorities)

12



3.Company Overview

Name of Business/ Corporation

Certificate No.
Status
Date of Commencement

Address

Nature of Business

HK Kaiyuan Travel Group Co.,
Limited.

69473800-000-06-18-8
Corporate body
June 7th, 2018

Xiaolan Business Incubation Centres,
Xiaolan Economic and Technological
Development Zone, Nanchang
County, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province

Domestic, entry and

exit tourism business, ticketing
agents, conference and exhibition
services, gift wholesale
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3.Company Overview

3.2.About the Company

“Jiangxi Kaiyuan International Traveling Agency Group Ltd.” is wholly owned
indirectly by “Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.”, a company
incorporated and registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands. “Jiangxi
Kaiyuan International Traveling Agency Group Ltd.” is a company incorporated
and organized under the laws of China on April 16th, 2012.

Company Name Jiangxi Kaiyuan International
Traveling Agency Group Ltd.

Uniform Social Credit Code 91360102593762886P

Type of Company Limited Liability Company

Third&Forth&Fifth Floor,
Address Block 3, No. 555, Gaoxin Avenue,
Nanchang National High-Tech
Industrial Development,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,

China
Legal Representative Lin Shi
Registered Capital RMB 30.8 Million
Date of Establishment April 16th, 2018
Operating Period April 16th, 2012 to long term

14



3.Company Overview

Business Scope Domestic tourism business, inbound
tourism business and outbound
tourism business (only operated
within the validity period and
permitted scope with the permit);
Ticket agent; Conference and
exhibition services; Gift wholesale.
(Projects that are needed to be
approved under the laws can only be
operated after being approved by
relevant governmental authorities.)

Sealed and Issued by Administration Bureau of Nanchang City

15
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3.Company Overview

3.3.Company’s Principal Activities

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd., through its wholly-owned
subsidiary Jiangxi Kaiyuan International Traveling Agency Group Ltd. (hereafter
referred as “JKIT”), is a ticket agent, tourism business company, involved in
domestic tourism business, inbound tourism business and outbound tourism
business, conference and exhibition services, gift wholesale and so on. More
details about the Company can be found in Section “Business Overview” of this
Information Memorandum. Detailed background information of the Directors
and Senior Management Team can be found in Section Directors and Senior
Management of this Information Memorandum.

Picture 1. The company meeting
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Picture 2. The wall of honor in JKIT

Picture 3. Daily work in JKI
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4.lssuance and Investment Qverview

Company Nature

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
on May 17th, 2018. The Company owns 100% of the shares of China’s
operating entity, Jiangxi Kaiyuan International Traveling Agency Group Ltd. By
the submission date of this Information Memorandum, the Company’s shares
are not listed in any other exchange. The Company’s listed securities will be
the Depository Receipts as explained in this Information Memorandum.
Investing in shares or Depository Receipts or other securities involves risks,
and investors themselves shall have to consider the risks involved.

Listing Advisor (LAD)

Nanjing LCL Consulting Co., Ltd. is a Chinese company and has been licensed
as a DCSX Listing Advisor (LAD) by the DCSX. The Company has appointed
Nanjing LCL Consulting Co., Ltd. as its Listing Advisor (LAD) under the Listing
Rules of the DCSX. The mission of Nanjing LCL Consulting Co., Ltd. is to assist
the Company in listing the securities of the Company on the DCSX. Nanjing
LCL Consulting Co., Ltd. is not responsible for the authenticity, accuracy or
completeness of any information (financial, legal or other) contained in this
Information Memorandum, and it doesn’t make any representation or provide
any approval, commitment, statement, certification or guarantee to the content
of this Information Memorandum.

Listing in the DCSX and Fund-raising Purposes

As aforementioned, the Company intends to apply for listing via issuing
Depository Receipts that will replace the listed shares on a one to one basis.
With the listing of ultimately the Depository Receipts, no new shares will be
issued at this stage. In other words, the Company is not to raise or receive new
funds in connection with this listing. The Company and/or its shareholders may
in the future wish to trade the Depository Receipts corresponding to their
existing shares through the DCSX. The authorized capital of the Company is
500,000,000 ordinary shares, the nominal value of the ordinary shares is
0.0001 USD per share, and the isting price of the shares is expected to be

19
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0.264 USD per share. The market value of the Company is therefore
estimated to be 132,000,000 USD. Projections and calculation on which the
market value is based can be found in the second and third parts of Section
“Financial Statements” of this Information Memorandum.

Indicative Timetable

Currently, Directors on the Company’s Board collectively plan to issue the
equity securities in May, all submission finish at the end of April.

Terms and Conditions of the Equity securities

The issuer will comply with all DCSX requirements applicable to listed issuers,
including DCSX rules, policies, rulings and procedural requirements and any
additions or amendments which may be made thereto from time to time which
rules, policies, ruling and procedural requirements may be in addition to in lieu
of the provisions of this agreement. The market value is around 132 million USD
with 500 million shares (the total number of shares listed in this company), and
the share price is 0.264 USD.

The Registration/Transaction of the Depository Receipts

The Company will eventually through a yet to be appointed issuer (a Financial
Institution acceptable to the DCSX) issue Depository Receipts corresponding
to the issued and outstanding ordinary shares of the Company, though the DRs
will not be evidenced by any certificates. With the listing of the Company’s
Depository Receipts on the DCSX, the DCSX and its Brokers will register and
manage the trading of the DRs. The DRs may be traded in the market, but the
Company will not and cannot provide any guarantee with respect to their
liquidity. The Company agrees that the Company and all the shareholders will
submit the complete and accurate information about the shares and the
required Depository Receipts to the Financial Institution that will issue the DR’s.
After the listing, the registration and trading of the Depository Receipts must
comply with the laws and regulations of the DCSX and other relevant regulators.

The Company agrees that the Depository Receipt holders have the same rights

as registered ordinary shareholders. Meanwhile, when the Company holds a
general meeting of shareholders, the Depository Receipt holders should also

20
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be notified, and allowed to exercise the same voting rights as holders of
ordinary shares.

Listing Cost

The listing fees and all other directly attributed costs (including audit fees, legal
fees, and other professional costs) associated with the listing are or will be paid
by the Company using existing funds.

Inquiry

Any inquiry on / regarding this Information Memorandum about listings should
be directed to the Listing Advisor (LAD), Nanjing LCL Consulting Co., Ltd.

21



5.Business Overview

5.Business Qverview

5.1.Executive Summary

Jiangxi Kaiyuan International Traveling Agency Group Ltd. (hereafter referred
as “JKIT") is registered in Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province, China, established
on April 16th, 2012, with the registered capital of RMB 30.8 million.

JKIT’s current main business is to Domestic tourism business, inbound tourism
business and outbound tourism business, ticket agent as well as conference
and exhibition services. JKIT has got involved in almost every step of tourism
and ticket agent, including conference arrangement, paperwork, visa
application, as it has organized and produced several tourism projects ranging
from a two-day tour to mount Lu to luxury and romantic 6-day tour to Phuket
Island.

5.2.Development History

The founder of JKIT, Mr. Xiaowei Zhang, is experienced in company
management and publicity. In Mr. Zhang’s previous working experience, he
learned the great potential of the tourism industry, and therefore he established
JKIT on April 16th, 2012 to enter this field. On April 16, 2012, the company
obtained the business license issued by the industrial and commercial
administration bureau of Donghu district, Nanchang city with the registration
number of 360102210035735, with the registered capital of RMB 500,000 and
paid-in capital of RMB 500,000. Mr. Xiaowei Zhang contributed RMB 425,000,
accounting for 85% of the registered capital. Mr. Huihua Tu contributed RMB
50,000,000, accounting for 5% of the registered capital; Mr. Tianping Xie
contributed RMB 25,000,000, accounting for 5 percent% of the registered
capital.

From 2012 to 2014 it took three years to explore and develop business models.
Up to October 2014, its exploration in tourism invented O20 business model.
On January 1st, 2015, it lanched an online traveling booking platform--
Zhangshanglv. In April 2015, it opened more than 60 branches in the province.
After one month, it realized 100 branches within Jiangxi province and became
the largest travel agency in the province.

In June 2016, the municipal government supported tourism e-commerce and
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5.Business Overview

approved a free office building of 4000 square meters. In September 2016,
Kaiyuan tourism agency held its first global naked tour carnival. In June 2017,
it was awarded China’s AAAA level brand enterprise in quality and integrity. It
purchased Huayu hotel and Sanya website for travel and accommodation from
June to July 2017. In August 2017, the largest cross-border tourism flagship
store in Jiangxi opened. In September 2017, Kaiyuan held its second global
naked tour carnival. It purchased Beihai Dingyuan international hotel in
September 2017. In November 2017, it was awarded the title of "outstanding
Jiangxi businessman" and "Vice President of Jiangxi businessmen association”.

5.3.Products and Services

The current business of JKIT consists of five parts: hotel, tourism card, outlet,
membership, online platform.

Here are some examples of products:
Tourism Carnival

On September 19th, 2018, the third 919 global naked tourism carnival of
Kaiyuan tourism agency was in full bloom in Leping, Jingdezhen, Jiangxi
province.

This activity took Leping, Jingdezhen, Jiangxi province as the main venue to
hold a tourism carnival festival through the offline communities of Leping city!
Leping city tourism departments, major tourist attractions in the province, major
travel agencies, hotels, tourism agencies, as well as citizens and tourists, total
of thousands of people, participated in the event!

In the third session of the 919 global travel naked swim carnival event, Kaiyuan
tourism agency, based on a good resourceful platform, coordinatedly plans out
a variety of tourism culture theme: ecological tourism, red tourism, folk customs
tourism, rural tourism, surrounding tourism, domestic tourism, outbound
tourism and other dozens of theme products for tourists choice!

In order to give back to the old and new members, Kaiyuan tourism agency has
invested tens of millions of dollars in lottery activities, drawing more than 100
travel routes online and offline. 10,000 places were waiting for members to draw!
From day to night, from the street to the end of the lane, with family, or with
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5.Business Overview

friends, people chased a jubilant atmosphere. More than 5,000 people attended
the event offline, and the event was publicized through hundreds of media,
attracting more than 50 million person-times. It is reported that that was the
largest and extensive tourism carnival in Jiangxi and even in China's tourism
history in 2018.

Picture 4. Consultative Site
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5.Business Overview

Hot Spring Tourism

In order to actively respond to the call of the second season of tourism bureau.
Kaiyuan tourism held a free hot spring bath for 1,000 people at Jinyan hot spring
on October 17th and 18th, 2015. The event attracted nearly 1,000 travel card
holders from Nanchang, Shangrao, Jiujiang, Yichun, Ji 'an, Fuzhou, Jingdezhen
and other regions. The event was a spectacular event with members of all ages.
The event was a great success. Through this activity, Kaiyuan has not only
enhanced its brand awareness, but also promoted its influence in Jiangxi
market. romoted its influence in Jiangxi market.

Picture 6. The popularization for the hot spring tourism
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5.Business Overview

5.4.Marketing Strategy

In recent years, the tourism market flourishes and the digitization of tourism is
a general trend. Jiangxi province is advantageously located and abundant of
revolutionary culture. as it could attract, organize, and coordinate the resources
of both attractions and tourists. Jiangxi is expected to become the important
base for revolutionary education and conference industry as well as the
platform displaying china crafts. However, in Jiangxi Province, the industrial
chain of tourism is not well-established, and the industrial scale is small. For
tourism practitioners like tour guides, hotel keepers, local retailers and even
investors, there is no a platform big enough to gather and share resources.
Therefore, to fulfill this market demand, JKIT has launched 365 maker digital
platform and zhangshanglv app to operate an industrial base for tourism, ticket
affairs and conference. This industrial base will fill the blank space in the tourism
market and will act as the main business of JKIT in the future.

5.5.Development Strategy

Having gone through the whole process of field sales, JKIT has found several
problems and barriers in the current Chinese tourism industry which have
hindered the industrial development. Many tour guides, hotel keepers and even
salesmen could not get in touch with tourists when they want to realize their
ideas due to the lack of connection and contacts. Likewise, many investors
could not find proper projects to invest in as well. JKIT aims to improve this
situation and to lower the threshold standard for tourism workers and investors
to participate in. To achieve this goal, as aforementioned, JKIT has reached a
strategic digitalization to solely operate the industrial base for conference, ticket
affair and tourism. This industrial base will act as a platform which provides
attraction tourism services like costume, equipment, shopping; opportunities to
get participated in tourism platform, and history witness as well as investing
opportunities for potential investors. The following chart demonstrates the
services provided by this platform clearly.
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5.Business Overview

5.6.Business Partners

JKIT has established partnerships with the following companies and institutes:
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Jiangxi Longsheng Industry Co., Ltd.

Jiangxi Branch of China Life Insurance Company Limited
*Shanghai Fengchi Trade Co., Ltd.

*Nanchang Branch of Huangxia Bank

*Shimenjian Scenic Area

*Nanchang Hongtudi International Traveling Agency Co., Ltd.

*Fujian Polytechnic of Information Technology

Jiangxi Longsheng (hereafter referred as JLI) is a company

Industry Co., Ltd. investing in tourism industry, cultural industry,
providing resort management and tourism
information of scenic spot--Zaohemu. JLI is
responsible for providing site and discount,
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5.Business Overview

Jiangxi Branch of China
Life Insurance Company
Limited

Shanghai Fengchi Trade
Co., Ltd.

Nanchang Branch of
Huangxia Bank

Shimenjian Scenic Area

Nanchang Hongtudi
International Traveling
Agency Co., Ltd.

while JKIT is responsible for travel agency
and introduction of tourist groups

(hereafter referred as PICC) is a company
providing insurance service. With the help of
JKIT’s multi-dimensional and all-round
tourism Industrial chain services, PICC
provides personalized customer service, and
JKIT shall fully assist and provide relevant
services needed, such as professional
talents, publicity materials, event support and
other services required by the service

(hereafter referred as SFT) is strive to
develop the new energy vehicle industry. By
integrating the advantages and resources of
both parties, SFT and JKIT will actively create
the best in New energy vehicle industry in
Jiangxi province

(hereafter referred as NBHB) is a listed
campany and helps JKIT to launch
Zhangshanglv Card of Huaxia Bank

(hereafter referred as SSA) is a national
scienic area. SSA is responsible for providing
site and free tour, while JKIT is responsible for
promotion and introduction of tourist groups

(hereafter referred as NHITA) is a company
investing in tourism industry, providing resort
management and tourism information of
scenic spot--Hongtudi. NHITA is responsible
for providing site and discount, while JKIT is
responsible for marketing and introduction of
tourist groups
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6.Related Parties

6.Related Parties

Information below is provided by China National Enterprise Credit Information
Publicity System and updated by www.qgichacha.com (Updated by April 26th,
2019)

Companies related to Xiaowei Zhang:

Hainan Xiangyou International Traveling Agency Co., Ltd.
Ganzhou Letian International Travel Agency Co., Ltd.
Jiangxi Kaiyuan Automobile Service Co., Ltd.

Hainan Xiangyou International Traveling Agency Co., Ltd.
Jiangxi Kaiyuan Wenlv Hotel Management Co., Ltd.
Jiangxi Green Soft Technology Co., Ltd.

Report is as follows:
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6.Related Parties

Company Name

Uniform Social Credit Code

Type of Company

Address

Legal Representative
Registered Capital
Date of Establishment
Operating Period

Business Scope

Hainan Xiangyou International
Traveling Agency Co., Ltd.

9M60I00MAS5T4YT603

Limited Liability Company (Natural
Person Investment or Holding)

Office 501, Block 3, No. 555,
Gaoxin Avenue, Nanchang
National High-Tech Industrial
Development,

Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province.

Yongfang Jiang
RMB 0.3 Million
June 20", 2018
June 20", 2018 to non-limited date

Domestic tourism business; inbound
tourism business; outbound tourism
(only operated within the validity
period and permitted scope with the
permit); ticketing agent; conference
and exhibition services; gift approval
(only operated within the validity
period and permitted scope with the
permit) (Projects needed to be
approved under the laws can be
operated after approved by the
relevant departments)
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6.Related Parties

Company Name

Uniform Social Credit Code

Type of Company

Address

Legal Representative
Registered Capital
Date of Establishment
Operating Period

Business Scope

Ganzhou Letian International Travel
Agency Co., Ltd.

91360702051607953M

Limited Liability Company (Natural
Person Investment or Holding)

Office 201, 2" Floor, No. 8-1,
Dingnan Road,

Zhanggong District,
Ganzhou City,

Jiangxi Province.

Jianzhong Liu

RMB 0.3 Million

August 6", 2012

August 6, 2012 to non-limited date

Inbound tourism, domestic tourism
(only operated within the validity
period and permitted scope with the
permit) (Projects that are needed to
be approved under the laws can only
be operated after being approved by
relevant governmental authorities)

Company Name

Uniform Social Credit Code

Type of Company

Jiangxi Kaiyuan Automobile Service
Co., Ltd.

91360106MA35J2YH1P

Limited Liability Company (Natural
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6.Related Parties

Address

Legal Representative
Registered Capital
Date of Establishment
Operating Period

Business Scope

Person Investment or Holding)

Forth Floor, Block 3, No. 555,
Gaoxin Avenue, Nanchang National
High-Tech Industrial Development,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province.

Yongfang Jiang

RMB 30 Million

June 1, 2016

June 1%, 2016 to May 31¢, 2046

Car rental; automobile decoration;
automobile information consulting
service; road passenger
transportation; road freight
transportation; passenger car taxi
service; passenger car taxi service.
(Projects that are needed to be
approved under the laws can only be
operated after being approved by
relevant governmental authorities)

Company Name

Uniform Social Credit Code

Type of Company

Hainan Xiangyou International
Traveling Agency Co., Ltd.

9M60I00MA5T4YT603

Limited Liability Company (Natural
Person Investment or Holding)
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6.Related Parties

Address

Legal Representative
Date of Establishment
Operating Period

Business Scope

Office 501, Block 3, No. 555, Gaoxin
Avenue, Nanchang National High-
Tech Industrial Development,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province.

Yongfang Jiang
June 20t, 2018
June 20t, 2018 to non-limited date

Domestic tourism business; inbound
tourism business; outbound tourism
(only operated within the validity
period and permitted scope with the
permit); ticketing agent; conference
and exhibition services; gift approval
(only operated within the validity
period and permitted scope with the
permit) (Projects needed to be
approved under the laws can be
operated after approved by the
relevant departments)

Company Name

Uniform Social Credit Code

Type of Company

Address

Jiangxi Kaiyuan Wenlv Hotel
Management Co., Ltd.

91360108MA37MUWG5M

Other Limited Liability Company

Room A180, Building attached to
Chetanghu, Baishui Lake
Management, Middle Lushan Avenue,
Nanchang National High-Tech
Industrial Development, Nanchang
City, Jiangxi Province.
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6.Related Parties

Legal Representative
Date of Establishment

Operating Period

Business Scope

Xiaowei Zhang
December 20*, 2017

December 20t, 2017 to non-limited
date

Hotel management; ticket agent;
accommodation services; catering
services; conference services;
exhibition services; wholesale and
retail of general merchandise;
enterprise management; trade
consulting services. (Projects needed
to be approved under the laws can be
operated after approved by the
relevant departments)

Company Name

Uniform Social Credit Code

Type of Company

Address

Legal Representative
Registered Capital

Date of Establishment

Jiangxi Green Soft Technology Co.,
Ltd.

91360106MA35LH68I2

Limited Liability Company (Natural
Person Investment or Holding)

Office 501, Block 3, No. 555,
Gaoxin Avenue, Nanchang National

High-Tech Industrial Development,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province.

Xia Liu
RMB 2 Million

December 15, 2016

34



6.Related Parties

Operating Period December 1%, 2016 to non-limited
date
Business Scope Computer software and hardware

development and sales; computer
information system integration
services. (Projects needed to be
approved under the laws can be
operated after approved by the
relevant departments)

These companies are not in competition.

Companies related to Lin Shi:

® Jiangxi Koudai Trade Holding Co., Ltd.

Report is as follows:
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6.Related Parties

Company Name

Uniform Social Credit Code

Type of Company

Address

Legal Representative
Registered Capital
Date of Establishment

Operating Period

Business Scope

Jiangxi Koudai Trade Holding Co., Ltd.

91360100MA35KJFA5SC

Other Limited Liability Company (not
listed)

Block 3, No. 555, Gaoxin Avenue,
Nanchang National High-Tech
Industrial Development, Nanchang
City, Jiangxi Province.

Lin Shi
RMB 50 Million
September 20", 2016

September 20", 2016 to September
19, 2046

Electronic products; Arts and crafts;
Daily provisions; Clocks and watches;
Lighting appliances; Building
materials; Mechanical equipment;
Mechanical and electrical equipment
sales; Enterprise management
consulting; Computer software
technology development; Technical
services and technical consulting.
(Projects needed to be approved
under the laws can be operated after
approved by the relevant
departments)
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7.Advantages and Highlights

7.Advantages and Highlights

Jiangxi Kaiyuan International Traveling Agency Group Ltd. has engaged in
tourism industry for 10 years, since the establishment. And it determined to
blaze a new path of original tourism and took the mission to create a new era.
After three years research, coinciding with the spring of Internet and blue ocean
policy, in 2015, JKIT officially launched tourism 2.0 mode to mark its innovative
transformation. A new model combining standardized tourism products, online
makers’ platform, sharing economy, membership mode, free cross-border tour,
offline promotion, and centralized management model shot the first gunfire of
innovation in tourism.

7.1.Great Development Potential

After 20 years of rapid development, the traditional tourism mode has been
fading in China. A new administration put forward an Internet + travel pattern
providing tourism new prospects. O20 mode will replace the traditional
consumption mode, besides, the online user’s experience mode combined with
offline channels, through sharing economy, will realize new development to
form tourism 2.0. The era of Internet will change every aspect of people's
livelihood. Driven by the thinking way of Internet, Kaiyuan launched the online
booking platform, namely zhangshanglv app, in 2015, which took three years
to develop and breed a new business model. Kaiyuan keep adhering to the
principle “while a man desire to establish himself, he has to establish others
first” led the national tourism industry achieving transformation from rural areas
to the cities, by the strategy of breaking through the last kilometer and the
management strategy of cross-border cooperation. Starting from domestic
industry chain, facing the global attraction tourism market, Kaiyuan will bring
the Jiangxi tourism and even China a new revolution in tourism. All Kaiyuan
people should volitively shoulder the transformation mission of China'’s tourism,
without fear for hardship, and march forward on the path of revolution, and lead
the industry striding out to take more overseas market. By the end of its 2016,
JKIT has 500 branches and 200 stores spearing across 16 provinces,
distributing in Hainan, Hunan, Shanghai, Fujian, Inner Mongolia, Guangdong,
Shandong, Henan, Hebei, Shenyang, etc. At the same time, by taking more
demonstration responsibilities, JKIT won plenty of awards such as international
travel agencies with five-star level service, top 100 tourism international agency,
Chinese brand enterprise with AAAA quality and honesty.
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7.Advantages and Highlights

7.2.Promising Revenue Income

For most tourism companies, it is difficult to get any profits in its expansion
period because of the nature of tourism industry and rent of outlet that a
company will input a lot before getting any outcomes. However, JKIT has
managed to get profits since the first because the business of publicity and
characteristic design have brought turnovers. The app and O20 mode JKIT
produced in 2015 are projected to bring promising revenues by the end of 2019.
Also, JKIT has signed strategic partnership agreements and merging contracts
with several companies on tourism and industry, which will bring revenues as
well. In addition, JKIT has received several intention letters on entering the
industrial base from other tourism companies, which will generate revenues in
2019. Specific revenue projection can be seen in Section Financial Statement.

Industry Overview

From the perspective of tourism model, the focus of the scenic tourism is
developing to regional resources integration, industry integration, co-
construction and sharing model. As the tourism industry enters the new stag,e
the traditional scenic spot tourism mode characterized by the way of grasping
points can no longer meet the needs of modern tourism development. In 2016,
the China national tourism administration (CNTA) put forward a new tourism
development strategy in the new era. Tourism combining with region's
economic and social resources, especially tourism resources, ecological
environment, the related industry, public services, systems and mechanisms,
policies and regulations, the civilized quality, systematic optimization etc, has
become a new direction.
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8.Directors and Senior Management

8.Directors and Senior Management

8.1.Directors

Name Position Shares
Xiaowei Zhang Chairman of Board of Directors 255550000
Independent Non-Executive
Ping Yin Director 69600000
Wenlian Zhang Executive Director 14000000

8.2.Senior Management

Name

Position Time to join

Responsibility

Lin Shi

CEO 2013

company
management and
operation

Yongjia Cheng

COO 2012

administrative works,
daily operation, and
public relation in
eastern part of
Jiangxi
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8.Directors and Senior Management

administrative works,
daily operation, and
public relation in
southern part of
Jianzhong Liu | GM 2002 Jiangxi
Client Service
Lian Yu CTO 2015 Management
accounting
Yanyan Dai CFO 2016 management
Purchasing Manage Nanchang
Xianji Zeng Manager 2015 operation center
8.3.Supervisor
Name Position Work experience Responsibility
the president of
Jiangxi motor
vehicle driver investment
Jinliang Zou | Supervisor training school introduce
Huihua Tu Supervisor Once worked in operation and
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8.Directors and Senior Management

Jiangxi Subsidiary
of State Grid
Corporation of

China

management
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9.Financial Statements

9.Financial Statements

Suzhou Ningyuan United Centitied Public Accountants
L it Al Apr3oa.Dasen Office Mansion, 368 Tongyuan Road,

XINGYUAN

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
Audited consolidated financial statements

For the financial year ended
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018

For and on behalf of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Lid.
FRMH D P DEHA RS

Authorized Signature(s)
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9.Financial Statements

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Contents
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Independent auditor’s report 1-5
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Foreign currency translation (USD) for the consolidated financial statements 33-36
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Authorized Signature(s)

43



9.Financial Statements

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
(incorparated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

W
7 3 R AE
We have audited the consolidated fmap{mal?&tatemgms dﬂgn an Travel Group China Holding Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its submdlal;zzs (cnilemwély referped ito as the “Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial pos:t:ah*qs at 3#=December 2018 and 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or Ioss\the consolldatgd\‘\:?it ment of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity dnd’ tﬁe‘ ﬁp\ dated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the conso datgg__ﬁnan ial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standard Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

g
g
g
g

lf of
China Holding Co, Lid.

T
TR R b AR A TR )

i
H

Authorized Signature(s)
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9.Financial Statements

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

(continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (continued)
Basis of consolidation w

Description

As disclosed in Note 1, the Company was incorporated on 23 ay 2018 o g Kor&&a uan Travel
Group Holding Co., Ltd. was incorporated on 7 June 2018, Nanchang ternational
Traveling Agency Co., Ltd. was incorporated on 24 October 2 enlv Hotel
Management Co., Ltd. was incorporated on 20 December 2017 ~Ha rynvx‘ﬂn u International
Traveling Agency Group Ltd. was incorporated on 12 June 2018 an nnan Xiangyou Hotel
Management Co., Ltd. was incorporated on 20 June 2018 . The Group reporting period was from
2017 to 2018, which means the above companies were included into the Group financial statements
when they were incorporated. Accordingly, there may be a risk of material misstatement related to
the basis of consolidation.

Audit response

Our main procedures in relation to the above key audit matter about the basis of consolidation
included:

*  Inspecting the statutory documents of the relevant companies to verify the validity of
incorporation, including the articles of association, capital verification reports, equity transfer
agreements, web background check reports from relevant government authorities, etc.

Other Information

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon (the “other information”).

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

For and on behalf of e
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Lid.
R S R R4 8)

" lnthorized Signature(s)

(S
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9.Financial Statements

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Kaiyuan Trave! Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

(continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and those in charge of the governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. *E,‘f?d
gd

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are re n:%\‘e\for ass I
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicablejmatter refated f
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the l_rectors;%”ér ir@
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative . %

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group orting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

For and on behalf of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
TR SRS P BREHA R4

D Ly T T T T T T T s
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9.Financial Statements

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

(continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professmna d maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: < \f\

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proced
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to f:pv}e a basis f
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting frorh\f ‘%}{
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forge R
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

for one
omissions,

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be through to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. For “""' b‘

Kaiyuan Travel Co, Lid
*&##%! 'l' Nlﬁ#m&‘]
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9.Financial Statements

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

(continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefit of such communication.

19 April 2019

ﬂ}_{:fiﬂﬂ!tﬂ!

iy

tants
T mel;:aggm Co., L.
Kaiyuan Travel )
FARMAD P DROA ML
................. ——
5
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9.Financial Statements

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
(Expressed in RMB)

2018

Note RMB

Revenue 5 118,222,895
Cost of sales (97,754,434)

Gross profit 20,468,461,

Other gains, net 3,711,189 39,
Selling and distribution expenses (3,119,258) (4,743,573)
Administrative expenses (9,013,711) (5,356,102)
Finance costs 6 (446,228) (223,246)
Profit before income tax 11,600,453 10,712,509
Income tax expense 7 (3,240,879) (2,683,464)
Profit for the year 8,359,574 8,029,045

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:

- Owners of the Company 8,632,629 8,039,490
- Non-controlling interests (273,055) (10,445)
8,359,574 8,029,045

For and on G?;:ag' N:{ %
Kaiyuan Travel Holding Co., Lid.
R BRE F EADA B

Authorized Signature(s)

6
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9.Financial Statements

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
Consclidated statement of financial position as at 21 December 2018 and

2017
(Expressed in RMB)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

2018 2017
Note RMB RMB
8 46,875,821 ;
43,292 x Wb o
— <
T
46,919,113 8,540,098 1%~
: P
Y
Y
9 1,901,143\ /%891 43\&<>
10 12,206,179 ,508) 384
11 1,392,045 7420
15,499,367 41,815,404
62,418,480 50,355,502
14 334,350 -
48,226,473 39,593,844
48,560,823 39,593,844
(283,500) (10,445)
48,277,323 39,583,399

LT o
%n*%n# YT eyl

.................. sssssessenssssaarieisitas

Authorized Signature(s)
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9.Financial Statements

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and

2017 (continued)
(Expressed in RMB)

2018
Note RMB

Non-current liabilities ‘.PQ
Long Term Payable 12 2,465820
Total non-current liabilities 2,465,320

\ 7 4

o \Fo

Current liabilities N
Trade and other payables 13 8,478,157~ 4
Bank borrowings o
Current income tax liabilities 3,197,680 341,221
Total current liabilities 11,675,837 10,772,103
Total liabilities 14,141,157 10,772,103
Total equity and liabilities 62,418,480 50,355,503

The consolidated financial statements on pages 6 to 8 were approved by the Board of Directors on
19 April 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

2 b L

Xiaowei Zhané Wenlian Zhang
Chairman of Bpard of Directors Director
For and on behalf of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Lid
TR 0 ) b A PR )
" liuthortzed Signature(s)
8
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9.Financial Statements

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017

(Expressed in RMB)

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Interest expense

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Decrease/ (increase) in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Profits Tax paid

Net cash generated from /(used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
equipment
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Addition of Construction in progress

Net cash generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Increase in long term payable
Issue of shares
Repayments of bank borrowings

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2018
RMB

11,600,453

2017
RMB

10,712,509

- #
38,461,827 —="883,010
(384,420) (2,459,067 )
38,077,407 (1,576,057)
320,690 -
(128,352) (11,805)
(40,052,019) -
(39,859,681) (11,805)
(446,228) (223,246)
- 3,600,000
2,465,320 -
334,350 -
(3,600,000) -
(1,246,558) 3,376,754
(3,028,832) 1,788,892
4,420,877 2,631,985
1,392,045 4,420,877

For and on behalf of

................. sressase

Authorized Signature(s)



9.Financial Statements

2.1

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

General information

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in domestic tourism bugisess, n’ d and
outbound tourism business, ticket agent, conference and exhipifion M gift
wholesale.

ak
The Company was incorporated and registered under the laws f,the Ca gn :
17 May 2018 under the Companies Law, Cap 22 of Cayman Island ltlmat
owners of the Group is Xiaowei Zhang. " 'ti Q\\%\

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (”RMB") unless otherwise
stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements are for
the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) which collective term includes all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
and Interpretation issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for certain properties and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

For an{.i an&:ag”:{ =
iyuan Travel Holding Co., Ltd.
%ﬂ#%ﬂl‘? B A TR A 8)

* Authorized Slgnalvre(.v)
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9.Financial Statements

2.2

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) gt 0
control The Group controls an entity when the Group is e t ights to,

are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

e ; -
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for busingss combinations
by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position
respectively.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. It means
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs.

seseaterrsrnrrnsnnsnes

Authorized Sigmluna)
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9.Financial Statements

23

2.4

2.5

(a)

(b)

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Separate financial statements /0504 N
. lbﬂ;}'_“/ A \\

a8
&
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impa[rn)ét. Cost jinclud Act
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries 1r’e accountéd#for Efi;tje

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable. \ = Fa =t
= z

% A
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required u ;-\f&E i
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total com preha'rsﬁ/_‘e_ i
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment
in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial statements
of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

o
=Y
P
=
]

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The Company has appointed the executive directors as the chief operating decision makers
to review the operating results of the Group on a consolidated basis, and makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the functional currency of the Company and presentation currency of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are generally recognised in
statement of profit or loss. All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of profit or loss within “other gains or losses, net”.

For and on behalf of

jyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
K;l!u;jilﬁia b E M A R F)
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9.Financial Statements

2.5

(b)

(c)

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances (continued)

H,‘.”{';,,
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value ﬁ'\ a foreij g‘urrs@% e translated
using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was® qétgrmqu Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair values, a@por[‘ed as the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on ‘(!ortﬁwne inandial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or lois areﬁ sed in statement
of profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid,
the associated exchange differences are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

For and on behalf of
China Holding Co., Lid.
Wﬁﬂfa"l’ TYILYY

Authorized Slgnamre(s)
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9.Financial Statements

2.6

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consclidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at historical
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that j
acquisition of the items.

asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future eco r#o

the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can e,ine
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset-is.dereedgnised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statememt of profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost less impairment
losses of each asset to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follow:

Useful life
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 8 years
Computer software and equipment 10 years

The useful life of the assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each of balance
sheet date.

For and on behalf of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Lld.

TR b R A TR

" Authorized Signature(s)
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9.Financial Statements

2.7

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more fret >
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are t el
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate fhat the c ¥ ipg a
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for tl'téjmoﬂ‘ﬁt;ﬁ" whi
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The re @bie amount.i
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. ;ﬁg‘;tg
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for whic
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows er assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

amsensvanne
..... P L L

liuthorized Signature(s)
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9.Financial Statements

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consclidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
value through profit or loss, receivables and available for sa

classification depends on the purpose for which the financigk’
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at4nitial reco mﬂon oV

2]

o ,& _
i Financial assets at fair value through profit or | e X
(i) gh profit or loss \A y%

The Group classifies financial assets at fair value through proﬁt’% )Ir}gs%%( ey are
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term, i.€. are held for
trading. They are presented as current assets if they are expected to be sold within
12 months after the end of the reporting period; otherwise they are presented as
non-current assets.

(i) Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. If collection of the amounts is expected in
one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets. The Group’s receivables comprise “trade and other receivables”,
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated statements of financial position.

For and on behalf of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
ﬂ'ﬂﬂﬁ#ﬂ ¥ Iﬂl!ﬂﬂ' 8]

Authorized Signature(s)
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9.Financial Statements

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are reco%z&é #e- ate, the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments>are § itially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial issets no@ ried
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value th gugh pH‘ﬁtt Dr*oss-ml itially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed 1.'t§;29nso idat ‘@'Qt ments
of proﬁt or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rig Criye @* s from

substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale |nan(:|al assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are presented in the consolidated statements of profit or loss
within ‘Other gains or losses, net’ in the period in which they arise. Investment income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available for sale is recognised in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss as part of other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available for
sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

For and on behalf of "
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
TR A b B A TR A F)

Authorized Signamre(s)
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9.Financial Statements

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
238 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(b) Impairment (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinqqut or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or r financial anisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a measunﬁbh\decrease ME stimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or econom Mmbpsthat mff'e te with
defaults.

29 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reBbrteei
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into arrangements that
do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contains significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

ot S ey
“ﬂ#wu* uamf;\ﬂ

" dnthorized Signature(s)
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2.12

213

2.14

2.15

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Share capital
Zeel 0502y

(1\4
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental €oSts directly z&r' table to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduttion, net of ta%; frory the proceeds.
[ o
4o e (20

Trade and other payables, and contract liabilities =2 e | =Fn

2° e
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and service Gyided t\bg{c roup prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and otherp: yabl'és-v_ar' resented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Awthorized Signature(s)
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.15 Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party a ration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assupied,. %ﬁgﬁofd in the statement of profit or loss as other
income or finance costs.

1 h

Aoy A
Where the terms of a fi aggil IlaEy !P’arevgg;\ gotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to )@pﬁgunsh a or tofjthe liability (debt for equity swap), a gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of pr F loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount 'Lthg fna_gpra'f liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

o o, i g 0, 13
“TRARRD TR GA AT

" Authorized Signature(s)
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2.16

(a)

(b)

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consclidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by

changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calcul E’@"ﬁﬁ\ﬁ' o the tax laws: enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the, rtmgApen he countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and genetate taﬁblermcomgﬂ anagement periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns %spe’é"‘{o SI%&J s in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It lishes pro i where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the t%/

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

FKIyuanor a";f G!:};dé;l fﬂdﬂnﬂ Co,, Lid.
i na
ARANRE P DRAA LA

Authorized Signature(s)
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16  Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is

also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a) Short-term obligations
S Wi
Liabilities for wages and sa ﬁ@'s:;inalﬂ‘ ing n@i netary benefits and accumulating sick
leave that are expected to be's&ttled wholly in A2 months after the end of the period in

which the employees render the. related sefvicg’are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting perit-and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for annual leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future
cash outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Authorized Signature(s)
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2.20

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in s of obligations may be small. Provisions
are measured at the present v & t's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present n at the’s the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the e’s@ﬂt va_lgeais a gég_: rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value fﬁﬁney and¥fie risksspecific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to the passagé of r e‘l‘;‘l?&og[@ interest expense.

Revenue recognition \MBL' e

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

a. from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually assaciated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

b. from the rendering of travel-related services when the services have been rendered;

c. from the rendering of tour services, when the services have been rendered;

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

Foran‘;imsb;;ag'ugm i i
n Travel g Co. L
TRANRD P AR BA
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(@)

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Nctes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not
transferred to the Group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The respective leased assets are included in the

balance sheet based on their nature.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

=N N, =
The Group’s activities dxpi =N it_t,é;a:{'arietﬁi‘?'fi ancial risks: interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The management idgntifies, evaltiates and mitigates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group's cperatgn‘ﬁ\uﬁité_. ,'the Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability ofﬁnéh'c‘nq_i,rﬁarkets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effacts on the Group’s financial-performance.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk
arises mainly, cash at banks and bank borrowings. Other financial assets and financial
liabilities are non-interest-bearing and are measured at amortised cost.

of
i ina Holding Co., Ltd.
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3.1

(b)

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes te the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

up’s credit risk arises from trade and other
roup’s maximum exposure to credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a grou, is, The
receivables, loan and cash dep i(@tmfn&éﬁ
which will cause a financial I i(vth Group” event of the counterparties failure to
perform their obligations as, a%e en%__“ofthem ing period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the cart"ﬁn'§ Qnoug;‘of ese assets.

y e
3 N (.\i}\ﬁq

In order to minimise the credit risk, ;E-nagement is responsible for the determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue trade receivables. Normally, the Group does not hold any
collateral over trade receivables. In addition, the management reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt regularly. The Group considered the associated credit risk of
trade receivables and debtors are manageable in general.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. Asthe Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases.

Cash deposited at banks and other receivables

All cash and cash equivalents were deposited in banks and were hence without significant
credit risk. Management does not expect any losses by these counterparties.

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience. Those balances are assessed by the management
of the Group as low risk with no any indicator to trigger a significant increase in credit risk
nor deterioration of credit quality.

For and on bchaéthf e
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
F Rk E bk DR A RS

Authorized Signature(s)
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31

(c)

3:2

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

ve been the payment for operating expenses.
ki ital requirements mainly through internal
to r{’gﬁ(:?[ monitor current and expected liguidity

t'€ash and cash equivalents and working capital

The Group’s primary cash requiremen
The Group mainly fnancey \

resources. The Group's Dﬁq_&
requirements to ensure it ?ﬁtalns
to meet its liquidity requi

Capital management ‘iﬁ ; \k S

Sos . - ; ;
The Group manages its capital to efisure that the Group entities will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, if any, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital,
share premium, other reserves and retained profits/accumulated deficits as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Management reviews the capital structure regularly. The management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

For and mt;n c‘:‘l.‘leiuz[c{;I of kg G i
uan T roup China Holding
K‘;"Y_E RE P BB PR )
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting
estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs
to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgemen 4&;, q%g%yjé

experience and other fagt %'K‘ ciuding“/&%
financial impact on th ity %'q‘d_.,rtha a
circumstances. The critical accotinting judg
policies are described bel S

evaluated. They are based on historical
ations of future events that may have a
believed to be reasonable under the
nts in applying the Group’s accounting

Determining whether a write-down is necessary in the carrying amount of inventories is
based on a comparison of whether the historical value of the inventories is greater than
their estimated selling price less all the related costs related to the selling process. In
addition, a detailed physical examination and quality tests are also carried out in order to
obtain an indication of realisable values. Once the carrying amount of the inventories is
higher than their net realisable values, a write-down will be made so that the carrying
amount of inventories would not be higher than their net realisable values.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group considers the ECLs of trade receivables are based on management’s estimate of
the lifetime expected credit losses which is taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of overdue trade receivables, customers’ repayment history, collection status
subsequent to year end, customers’ financial position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgement.

e L LELE T LT LLT T

Authorized Signature(s)
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Revenue
2018 2017
RMB RMB
Revenue from tourism business 116,103,942 112,523,285
Others 2,118,953 930,349
118,222,895 113,453,634
o~ fh )
1\ HLJJ
4
Profit before income g’ d;\
oo
Profit before income wr }a"ﬂer ng:
v v 2018 2017
\d' \\{\ RMB RMB
iasee
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,439,898 1,404,680
Finance costs 446,228 223,246
Staff costs 2,758,291 4,701,440
Income tax credit/(expense)
2018 2017
RMB RMB
Profits Tax - PRC
Current income tax 3,240,879 2,697,192
Deferred tax credit - (13,728)
Income tax credit/(expense) 3,240,879 2,683,464

For and on behag'mtg' Holdig Ca, L4
AT SR AR A
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Expressed in RMB)

Property, plant and equipment

Computer
Equipment
Office Motor and Construction
equipment vehicles software  in progress Total
RMB,_ RMB RMB RMB RMB
Cost or valuation K AN Y ﬁ,:"\.
At 1 January 2017 fg;,%f-‘y’ ﬁ&- 7,424 5,922,900 10,546,292
Addition Y 11,805 P - - 11,805
Disposal 4 o e 24) - (47,424)
At 31 December 2017 e 3,7§7.?73~ Egugo, 00 5,922,900 - 10,510,673
= X L3, f
\ N f
At 1 January 2018 : 3,797,773 QA ?g,o,ooo 5,922,900 10,510.673
Addition ‘\ 123,35& 1\ /‘ - 40,052,019 40,180,371
Disposal Liy -\ _“(500,000) - - {500,000)
—
At 31 December 2018 3,926,125 290,000 5,922,900 40,052,019 50,191,044
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2017 255,084 50,367 303,736 609,187
Depreciation for the year 680,122 132,255 592,303 - 1,404,680
Disposal - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 935,206 182,622 896,039 - 2,013,867
At 1 January 2018 935,206 182,622 896,039 2,013,867
Depreciation for the year 753,784 93,812 592,302 - 1,439,898
Disposal - (138,542) - (138,542)
At 31 December 2018 1,688,990 137,892 1,488,341 3,315,223
Net book at 1 January 2017 3,530,884 787,057 5,619,164 - 9,937,105
Net book at 31 December 2017 2,862,567 607,378 _ 5,026,861 - 8,496,806
Net book at 31 December 2018 2,237,135 152,108 4,434,559 40,052,019 46,875,821
Inventories
2018 2017
RMB RMB
Finished goods - commodities 1,901,143 1,891,143
For and on behalf of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Lid.
F R AN E P AR TR 4
rized Signature(s)
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10

11

12

13

14

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(Expressed in RMB)

Trade and other receivables

2018 2017
RMB RMB
Trade receivables 69,309 16,207,986

8,995,256 11,206,193
3,141,614 8,089,206

Prepayments and deposits paid =~ _
Other receivables and utilities de'pgsi-&; B 4

NN

Trade and other receivables. 12,206,179 35,503,384

S

Yo m\

Cash and cash equivalents \ /
The carrying amount of cash anﬁ"caéhéqﬁfvafents comprises cash at banks and on hand.

Long term payables

The carrying amount of long term payable represented deposits received from customers
with more than 1 year.

Trade and other payables

2018 2017
RMB RMB
Trade payables 1,175,907 1,695,808
Receipts in advance from customers 1,091,632 182,346
Deposits received from customers 3,559,349 2,928,094
Accruals and other payables 2,651,275 2,024,634
Trade and other payables 8,478,157 6,830,882
Share capital
Number of Nominal
shares value
Note (thousands) RMB
Ordinary shares
Issued and fully paid:
USD 50,000 divided into 500,000,000 shares of a
par value of USD0.0001 each
500,000 334,350

At 31 December 2018 Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Lid. 5,000,000 334,350

4r!horiz¢d Signature(s)
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15

(a)

Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Notes to the consohdatedﬂmnﬂaj statements
(Expressed in RMB) i\f\ﬁc

V/v
Approval of consolidated fmancnal %’entg—gx
i
The consolidated financial sga(;lamen re a@l d by the board of Director and
authorised for issue on 19 A 20/1)9% o

™

¥ o “;,\ »
For an_lt_i on behalf of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co.
TR 3 5 8 *W&ﬂ}im«\ﬂ
................. e
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Foreign currency translation
The Group’s functional currency is Renminbi Yuan ("RMB™).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are generally recognised in
statement of profit or loss. All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of profit or loss within “other gains or losses, net™.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair values are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities are
translated into US Dollar (USD) using exchange rates prevailing at end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the average rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.

Tongxing LI 255

W i~

TR R (L PN
; < SH o\

Xingyuan United Certified E‘{/b_},lc &vtj:c_o 1tants
e -

For and on behalf of ‘
Sy, Kalyuan Travel Group China Co., Ltd.
Y RN R E P O A R E
" -------------n---:‘.;;lll-o.nnn&iﬁiu-;"-ﬁ;)-
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.
Consolidated statoment of profit or loss and other
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017

(Expressed in USD)

comprehensive income

2018 2017

uUsD usp
Revenue 17,904,059 16,791,648
Cost of sales (14,804,249) (13,684,203)
Gross profit 3,099,810 3,107,445
Other gains, net 562,035 5,893
Selling and distribution expenses (472,391) o M (7@2,‘670)
Administrative expenses (1,365,066) 74 »J\u(zg
Finance costs (67,578) /= /\\ (33 / ﬁ

] ~ \ ~
I Ps &7 =y
Profit before income tax 1,756,810 |- ““\;1,5&5,5(50\ /]
Income tax expense (490,809) \ 2 |’(397,ﬁ6§§l
Profit for the year 1,266,001 \ 1( s
Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company 1,307,353 1,189,881
- Non-controlling interests (41,352) (1,546)
1,266,001 1,188,335
For and on behalf of
Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd
TR A% 8 P WAL A PR 8

""" Authorized Signature(s)
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 21 December 2018 and

2017
(Expressed in USD)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets
Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Reserves

Translation reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

2018 2017

usD usD
6,814,995 1,306,002
6,294 6,654
6,821,289 1,312,656
276,396 290,678
1,774,582 . 5,457,047

202,381

48,609 =
7,167,420 5,860,067
(154,381) 225,645
7,061,648 6,085,712

(42,898) (1,546)
7,018,750 6,084,166
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Kaiyuan Travel Group China Holding Co., Ltd.

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December

2017 (continued)
(Expressed in USD)

Non-current liabilities
Long Term Payable

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Total current liabilities

2018 2017
usD usD
358,418
358,418 -
1,232,588, .—..1,049,941
, I\éf 338
480001 1117 52 047
(=5 W, =T
1,60%880 )

Total liabilities

2,085,898

Total equity and liabilities

s

St

% (&

Wenlian Zhang
Director

Xiaowei Zhang
Chairman of Board of Directors
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10.Future Plans and Financial Projection

10.Future Plans and Financial Projection

10.1.Summary

Summary of Future Projection (in RMB)

Net Asset A N .- N T
Total Asset 62.4 75 145 243

Unit:MilionRMB |
2018 = 2019 = 2020 = 2021

Total Liabilities 141 = 22 42 75

Asset-liability 23% 29% 29.5% 30.8%

Future Projected Revenue Composition (in RMB)

Ratio
Revenue 118 251 531 1047
Net Profit 8.4 28 71 131

Unit: Million RMB

Revenue: Revenue :Revenue: Revenue Revenue Total
from from from from from onlinel Revenue
Hotel Tourism outlet ‘membership: platform
card
2018 10 30 68 10 0.00 118
2019 1 30 100 100 20 251
2020 1 30 100 200 200 531
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10.Future Plans and Financial Projection

2021 2 45 200 300 500 1047
Summary of Future Projection (in USD)
Unit: Million USD

2018 2019 2020 2021

Total Liabilities  2.056  3.276 = 6.254 = 11.172

Net Asset 7.019 | 7.595 13.254 | 23.535

Total Asset 9.075  11.169 ; 21.581 | 36.197

Asset-liability 23% 29% 295% 30.8%

Ratio
Revenue 17.904 37.358 79.032 15.596
Net Profit 1.266 4,130 10.493 19,551
Future Projected Revenue Composition (in USD)
Unit: Million USD
Revenue: Revenue :Revenue: Revenue : Revenue Total
from from from from from online. Revenue
Hotel Tourism outlet ‘membership: platform
_card

2018 1.488 4.465 11.908 1.488 0.00 19.349
2019| 0.149 4.465 14.884 14.884 2.979 37.358
2020 0.149 4.465 14.884 29.792 29.792 79.032
2021| 0.298 6.703 29.792 44.687 74.479 ‘ 15.596

89




10.Future Plans and Financial Projection

Note: This projection in USD is based on the exchange ratio between USD
and RMB on April 23th, 2019, 1 US Dollar equals 6.7085 RMB.
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10.Future Plans and Financial Projection

10.2.Report for Basis of Revenue Projection

Financial export Nanjing LCL Consulting Co., Ltd. analyzed the statistics
provided by JKIT, and made a report.

JKIT’s projected revenue consists of five parts: outlet, hotel, tourism card,
membership, and Online platform.

Hotel JKIT has invested in the hotel chains, and now it has
opened and launched a hotel business, with a total
investment of RMB 12 million and an annual return of
RMB 1 million. In the future, JKIT is expected to invest
in 5 hotels after raising funds in the hotel investment
sector

Tourism card JKIT has issued a one-card for tickets in China. A
tourism card with a value of RMB 100, enjoys 12 times
of free tickets a year. It is estimated that 300,000 tickets
will be sold annually, maintaining a growth rate of 20%
and boosting the consumption

Online platform  Through the model of Xiangyou Website, members'
online consumption is expected to be RMB 20 million
turnover, with 5% profits and RMB 1 million profit.
Xiangyou Website has a large number of members and
online stores, and it is estimated that in 2020, the
member performance income will be RMB 200 million,
and the profits will be 10%, that is RMB 20 million

Outlet There are 220 branch stores in China, with tourism
business reaching RMB 100 million and 1% profit,
namely RMB 1 million profit. It will grow over 300
branch stores in future three years, with tourism
business reaching RMB 200 million and 2% profit,
namely RMB 4 million profit
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10.Future Plans and Financial Projection

Membership In 2019, Xiangyou Website system will be developed. It
is expected that the number of online members will
grow to 2 million, and the operating revenue will reach
RMB 100 million. With 32% profits, namely RMB 32
million profit. Through the number of members in 2019
and fission of members in 2020, the number of
members can reach 7 million

Disclaimer:

Above projections are based on data and information provided by the
Company, which might contain biases from the unilateral subjective
projection of the Board of Directors and the management team. The
projections are also based on the macroeconomic and social environment,
the specific industry’s situation, market situation and the Company’s current
position. Hence, the above projections do not provide any warranty.
Therefore, the listing advisor, lawyer, expert and auditor will also not be liable
for these projections. The Company and the management team want to
pursue an excellent financial condition, but the risks and uncertainties can
affect the result. Therefore, the Company cannot guarantee the outcome
would be the same as the above projections. Consequently, all investors
should be aware of these risks and uncertainties and should not solely rely
on these predictions when making their decisions. Investors must carry out
independent analysis and judgments.
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10.3.Market Value

According to the Company's three-year projection, the total number of shares
will be 500 million, each share will be 0.264 USD, and the total market value of
the Company will be 132 million USD. The projection of the market value of the
Company will be described in this section.

Methodology

The discounted cash flow method (DCF) is adopted to project the market value.
DCF is a method that uses the concept of time value of money to value a project,
company, or assets. This method is suitable for the Company which has great
development potential and strong core competitiveness. Therefore, DCF is the
method applied to project the market value of the Company.

Approach

The calculation process of the market value consists of two sections: one is the
total profit of three years, the other one is the present value of perpetual annuity
which equals the profit of product sales and other services. The formula is
shown below. “P” stands for the present value of perpetual annuity. “A” stands
for the annual return and “i” stands for the interest rate.

P(A,i)= A
The present value of perpetual annuity: SR

Analysis Input

The formula for market value: [(Total three-year projected net profit) + P (A, i)]
| RE

Symbol Description Data
Fao19 Projected net profit in 2019 RMB 28million
F2020 Projected net profit in 2020 RMB 71million
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F2021

Projected net profit in 2021

RMB 131 million

uA”

In the calculation, the profit in 2021 will be

regarded as the annual return for the present]

\value of perpetual annuity.

RMB 131million

The discounted rate. (Based on the analysig
the equity premium is around 10-11%, thq
risk-free rate is around 3%, and the companyj

specific risk

is around 6%.)

20.0%

h

“RE”

'The exchange ratio on 23 April 2019

October from

USD to RMB used by the Company

6.7085

Calculation for Market Value

[(28+71+131) + P (131, 20.0%)]/6.7085= 132 million USD

Calculation for Share Price

132 million USD/ 500 million shares =0.264 USD per share

Limitation

This projection has its limitation due to potential biases in the calculation
process because it lacks consideration of risks and other uncertainties.
Meanwhile, some unpredictable factors can also affect the result, such as the
changing exchange ratio and inflation. Therefore, limitation of this projection

should be made aware of to the decision makers.
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Conclusion

Based on the concept of the time value of money, the market value is calculated
on the total projected profit from 2019 to 2021 and the perpetual annuity which
uses the projected profit in 2021 with the rational interest rate referred to the
interest rate of the bank financial products. The market value is around 132
million USD with 500 million shares (the total number of shares listed in this
company), and the share price is 0.264 USD.

Disclaimer:

The projections are based on a variety of assumptions which may or may not
prove to be accurate or may be subject to disputes. It also based on the
macroeconomic and regulations, the specific industry’s situation, market
situation so that the projections do not provide any warranty. The listing advisor,
lawyer, and auditor will also not be liable for these projections. The Company
and the management team want to pursue an excellent financial condition, but
the risks and uncertainties can affect the result. Therefore, the Company cannot
guarantee the outcome would be the same as the above projections.
Consequently, all investors should be aware of these risks and uncertainties
and should not solely rely on these predictions when making their decisions.
Investors must carry out independent analysis and judgments.
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11.Contract and Agreement

According to the information provided by the Company, the Company’s
performance and completion of the major contracts during the reporting period
are shown below

Contract type Related party Content

Loan Contract Industrial and JKIT confirmed that they
Commercial Bank of loaned RMB 3,600,000 from
China Industrial and Commercial

Bank of China (hereafter
referred as ICBC)

Contracts on Jiangxi Hezhong Tour JKIT has signed contract on
Mergers and Bus Service Co., Ltd. mergers and acquisitions
Acquisitions with Jiangxi Hezhong Tour

Bus Service Co., Ltd.
(hereafter referred as
JHTBS). According to the
contract, JKIT settle JHTBS’
debts total RMB 11,000,000
and compensate JHTBS
RMB 2,000,000, while
JHTBS is owned by JKIT
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11.Contract and Agreement

Mandatory
Administration

Contracts

Depository Contr
act

Other
Receivables and
Payables

Mr. Zhenjiang Fu and JKIT has signed Mandatory

Mr. Chuanli Gui Administration Contracts with
Mr. Zhenjiang Fu and Mr.
Chuanli Gui. According to the
contracts, JKIT set up two
outlets respectively in
Hainan Province and Anhui
Province. JKIT delegate
administration to outlets,
while JKIT holds
administrative rights.

Nanchang Branch of JKIT has also signed a

Huaxia Bank cooperation contract with
Nanchang Branch of Huaxia
Bank (hereafter referred as
NBHB). According to the
contract, JKIT set up a
current account to deposite
its business reservations,
while NBHB provide
depository service

According to the relevant information provided by the
Company and the Auditor’s Report, other receivables
and payables of the Company are legitimate. Can be
seen in Financial Statement.
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12.Risk and Litigation

12.1.Risk
Business Risks

Operational risks: In the JKIT’s operation, there is a risk that loss might be
caused to the projects run by JKIT due to complex industrial environment,
untimely respond, limited cognition and so on. These factors might not only
increase investment but also delay the accomplishment of the projects.

Risks related to products: Although there were several good platforms in the
Chinese market in 2018, there was a downward trend in the number of foreign
tour projects in the market of 2019 as the tourists has got a higher expectation
and various tastes. Therefore, JKIT should produce more inbound tourism
projects that aim at specified domestic tourists. Considering different needs of
tourists, there is a risk that JKIT might fail to produce characteristic services.
But JKIT will produce more featured products to reduce this risk.

Market Risks

Insufficient analysis of market demand might result in JKIT losing its
competitiveness. However, the Company’s senior management will set up and
improve the risk assessment mechanism, collecting competition information,
analyzing competitors’ strategies, so as to ensure this kind of risks under control.

Risks Related to National Policy

The industry of tourism is economically important for a country, and therefore is
strictly supervised and subject to relevant national policies, laws and
regulations. Companies that act against the laws, policies, and regulations
might be fined, temporarily closed or permanently forbidden to enter the market
according to the severity of the violation. Therefore, the operation and
performance of the Company will be greatly affected by any changes in national
policies, laws and regulations.

Industrial Risks
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The Company are mainly focusing on the projects in the culture and tourism
industry.The primary features of these projects are dependent on economic
situation of tourists. Therefore, economic downturn may cause impact on the
whole industry.

Financial Risks

There is a risk that the Company’s clients fail to make the payments in time.
This will not only affect the operation of the projects, but also might cause loss
to the Company.

Stock Market Risks

The risks of stock market are ever presenting, and the fluctuation of stock prices
may result loss to investors. There are numerous factors that can affect stock
prices, including our company’s performance, changes in national economy
policies, changes in the national financial situation, changes in interest rate,
inflation and deflation and other unpredictable factors. Investors should be
aware of the risks of the stock market before buying our securities.

Other Risks
Investments

Investing involves certain risk considerations, including currency fluctuations,
lack of liquidity and price volatility of the stock markets, government
involvement and influence on the private sector, political and economic factors,
leverage and other factors. These might adversely affect the Company’s
activities and the value of its investments. There are particular risks relating to
the investment and trading of equity and debt instruments, which include the
uncertainties involved in trading in emerging markets. The ability to trade
profitably in emerging markets may be affected by world events, changes in
foreign policies and other economic and political factors that are outside the
control of the Company. Set forth below are certain factors, which should be
taken into consideration before making a decision to buy shares of the
Company. While the Management believes the following to be comprehensive,
itis not intended to include all of the risks that may be encountered. Accordingly,
potential investors are advised to consult their financial advisors before buying
any shares of the Company.
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General

The transactions that the Company will engage in may involve risks. Growing
competition in the market may limit the ability to take advantage of opportunities.
No assurance can be given that the Company strategies employed will be
successful or that shareholders will realize net profits on their respective
investments.

General Uncertainty and Risks

There are some unpredictable factors that might affect the business. The
previous sales cannot be the guaranteed indicator for the future. Sales might
increase or decrease in the future.

Economic Conditions

The success of any investment activity may be affected by general economic
conditions.

Exchange Rate Fluctuations

The Company’s accounts are denominated in US Dollars. Investments of the
Company may be in currencies other than the US Dollars, such as the Chinese
RMB. Similarly, certain expenses of the Company including organizational,
offering, operating expenses and the fees of the management and service
providers, will incur in Chinese RMB. Accordingly, the Company is at risk and
liable for any gain or loss incurred due to the exchange rate fluctuation, for
example, the investment for automation equipment, brand development and
human resources, as referred in Section 6. Thus, shareholders and investors
should realize the risk of exchange rate-fluctuations.
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12.2.Litigation

The Company might be named as a defendant in a lawsuit or in a regulatory
action stemming from the conduct of its business and activities of a company
personnel. In the event that such litigation occurs, the Company would bear the
costs of defending itself, and understands the risk of unsuccessful results of the
litigation. It should be noted that the Company and Management have
consulted with lawyers, accountants and other experts regarding the
constitution of the Company and the business of its subsidiaries. Each
prospective investor should consult his own legal, tax and financial advisors
regarding their desire to make an investment in the Company.

in view of the complexities of applicable tax laws, each prospective future
investor / shareholder of shares of the company is strongly urged to consult
its own tax advisors on the possible tax consequences of buying, holding,
selling or transferring shares under the laws of their country of citizenship,
residence or domicile

The Company’s litigation, arbitration or administrative penalties

According to the “China Judgements Online”: http://wenshu.court.gov.cn/, by
April 26th, 2019, Jiangxi.

Kaiyuan International Traveling Agency Group Ltd. have several litigation
records and all have been peacefully settled.
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Signature

Signature

Dutch Caribbean Securities Exchange:

Our company intends to apply for entry into the Dutch Caribbean Securities Exchange
(DCSX) market. Our company (including the Chinese subsidiaries of the company), the
Board of Directors, and all members of Senior Management ensure that all application
documents submitted to the DCSX have no false records, misleading statements and
material omissions, and assume full responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy and
integrity of them.

Signature of Directors

?‘fd‘(% F &é‘-@

Xiaowei Zhang Ying Ping Wenlian Zhang

Signature of Senior Managers

X;J M ﬁﬁ.@; . ﬁ%\ in Shi; Jiayong Cheng; Jianzhong Liu

LA 8 ) . Xianji Zeng; Lian Yu; Yanyan Wu;
gulie 7 /_‘.’ @ J)f(& J & ’ ’
:5 é' 2 @M\ A - ? é’%.

/] i, %,\/ Jinliang Zou; Huhua Tu

Company Seal:

April 26", 2019
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